
The first vicar of Christ Church 
 
The creation of Christ Church is due largely to the vision, driving force and persuasive powers of the 
vicar of the day, the Reverend Joseph Ibbetson 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Joseph Ibbetson was born in Middlesbrough in 
1801 and after studying for an MA at St John’s 
College Oxford became curate at Darlington in 
1824. He was appointed  vicar of Nunthorpe and 
Curate at Newton-under-Roseberry.in 1825 and 
then vicar of All Saints Great Ayton in 1827 
In 1834 he married Elizabeth daughter of 
Thomas and Ann Simpson of Nunthorpe Hall in 
All Saints Church.  
 
He soon made his mark on the new parish in 
various ways! In the vestry minutes of 1828 it 
was decreed that  “in future, no allowance of ale 
or liquor be given at any of these meetings” And 
later, one of his parishioners, David Bottomley 
the local bobby used to bring his noisy jackdaw, 
“Jack” into church – he argued that if there was 
a choice between listening to a noisy jackdaw on 
the window sills or listening to Rev Ibbetson’s 
sermon he was in no doubt which one he would 
choose!! 

In 1840, the Churchwardens were authorised to purchase a new copy of the authorised version 
of the Bible as” the existing one is incorrect” By 1844, the register of books held by the church 
included “Cause of the decay of Christian Piety”, “Considerations upon Eternity” and “ The 
Triumph of God’s revenge against unjust and premeditated murder”! 
Thus settled into the parish, he set about making some more fundamental changes!  Not satisfied 
with the existing vicarage (now Winford House) it was  at Ibbetsons instigation that a new 
vicarage was built in 1846, "thus securing to the Parish, the benefit of a resident Clergyman" The 
old vicarage became  the “Bob and Tanner”, a temperance hotel!!!  
He then set about improving All Saints by having a vestry built in 1849. 
However, with the development of whinsone mining and the influx of people into the village in 
the 1860s it was soon apparent to Ibbetson that All Saints would not be able to accommodate 
the growing population who wanted (or needed) to worship there. This would certainly have 
been true if the statistic in 1860 that typically 542 people went to church out of the village 
population of 1032 was to be repeated in later years! He considered extending All Saints but 
there was already insufficient space in the graveyard, so he set about persuading the high and 
mighty to help him raise funds for a new Church. In his prospectus produced in 1866 he writes: 
“…it was deemed desirable to rebuild the Church on a new site …as near as possible to the old 
Burial Ground. Captain Marwood has given a valuable piece of land for the purpose. While the 
village is surrounded by scenery so lovely and beautiful, the House of God ought to have a 
corresponding character, such as becomes its sacred purpose” 
A subscription list was opened in 1866 to raise funds for the new Church- Captain Marwood 
contributed £300 , Rev Ibbetson himself gave £75 -even the Archbishop of York and the 
Archdeacon were on the list as were hundreds of private subscribers some of whom came from 
as far afield as Liverpool, Leicester, Birmingham and London. Altogether over £2000 was raised 
after the first appeal – a good start on the £5000 needed to build the new Church 
 
 
 

 



However, owing to a depression  in the iron trade, further funding proved to be very difficult and 
the project was abandoned. Things were made even more difficult when his wife of 35 years, 
Elizabeth, died on 2nd January  1969. Described by many as a “faithfull shepherdess and exemplary 
handmaid of the Lord” she had worked tirelessly to provide comfort and support to the sick and 
poor of the parish. (see accompanying article by Ian Pearse)          
In 1873 however, Revd Ibbetson restored to full vigour and aided by the newly- created “Building 
Committee” managed to raise sufficient funds for work on the new church to commence.  
 
 

 
 
 



Advertisments in the local press gave an indication that things were happening .In 1873 tenders 
were invited for demolition work on the old church and for the provision of stone and ‘first class’ 
stone wallers. By 1875 a contractor was needed to dismsntle and remove the scaffolding. 
  
The architects Ross and Lamb of Darlington (the former an ex- pupil of Friend’s School) had been 
engaged to supervise the work and prepare drawings  to show the site on which the church was to 
be built and the layout of the church itself. The only drawings which have been found were in fact 
rather crude sketches but they seen to have been adequate to support the faculty application to the 
Diocesan authorities. The faculty is unusual (to say the least) in that there is remarkably little detail 
with the bulk of the responsibility for ensuring a satisfactory project being laid on the shoulders of 
the Vicar, the Churchwardens (Richard Johnson Sayer and William Dixon) and the  “Building 
Committee” comprising  George Marwood, Isaac Wilson and William Randolph Innes Hopkins – as 
wealthy landowners they could be trusted! However, by present day standards the wording of the 
faculty gives an excessive amount  of scope to the developers! 
 
“the whole of the said work to be effected and carried out in strict conformity with the ground plan 
hereunto annexed marked A which has been approved and sanctioned by his Grace the Lord 
Archbishop of York….” 
 
The remainder of the faculty was a detailed account of the part demolition of All Saints Church and 
the uses to which the redundant stones were to be put!! 

 
 

 
 
 

 



The faculty was dated  29th April 1876 and the citation was posted on the door of the new church on 
7th May 1876 –  a retrospective faculty for a new church would be unheard of at the present time- 
perhaps this is further evidence of Revd Ibbetson’s persuasive powers in convincing  those in 
authority that “everything will be alright on the night”!! And on 20th May 1876 the new Church was 
ready to be used for the first time. 
 
Described as “one of the most handsome structures  in the North Riding”, it was 63ft long by 44 ft 
wide inclusive of the aisles with a spire 120ft high. The walls were made of ‘hammer-dressed sueck 
rubble with ashlar quoins’. Masonry work was carried out by William Heccle of Great Ayton and the 
joinery work by William Martin also of Great Ayton. Other craftsmen came from Durham, Darlington 
and Middlesbrough. 
 
The official capacity of the church was 356 adults and 88 children (excluding the choir!) At the 
opening services, held in fine weather, the church was said to be “well filled  in every part.” 
 
On 12th March 1877, Christ Church was finally consecrated by William Thomson, Archbishop of York. 

 
 
His labours in Great Ayton complete, Joseph Ibbetson finally retired in 1878 and chose to spend his 
retirement  in Darlington until his death in 1887. Little is recorded of his final years or the manner of 
his death. Suffice to say that this remarkable man has been commemorated by a fine marble plaque 
in Christ Church and an elegant tomb in All Saints Churchyard where his ministry in Great Ayton 
began 52 years earlier 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   


